S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Tel ; +91 80 6648 9000

To the Members of GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of GMR Vemagiri Power Generation
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes to the Ind AS financial statements.
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. except
for the possible effects of the matters described in the *Basis for Qualified Opinion™ section of our
report, the atoresaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As detailed in note 34 to the accompanying Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 3 1.
2020. the Company has ceased operations and have been incurring losses with a consequent erosion of
net worth resulting from the unavailability of adequate supply of natural gas. The carrying value of the
intangible and other assets is significantly dependent on the achievement of key assumptions made in
the valuation assessment by an external expert around availability of natural gas. future tariff and
realization of claims for losses incurred in earlier periods trom the customer. Accordingly. we are unable
to comment on the appropriateness of the carrying value of the intangible and other assets of the
Company as at March 31, 2020.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specitied under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 2.1 to the accompanying Ind AS financial statements which indicate that the
Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 69.666.65 lakhs and its net worth has been substantially eroded,
the Company has incurred cash losses during the current and previous years and the Company’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 16,072.49 lakhs as at the balance sheet date. Further as
detailed in note 34 to the accompanying Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020,
the Company has ceased operations currently on account of unavailability of adequate supply of natural
gas and is dependent on the parent Company to provide support to meets its operational expenditure
and repay its liabilities. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in the atoresaid note
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indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.
Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the notes to the accompanying Ind AS financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2020:

I. Note 29(1I)(A)(b) relating to certain amounts due to suppliers towards procurement of goods
and services, which are outstanding beyond permissible time period under the applicable
regulations.

2. Note 37 which describes the impact of the outbreak of Corona virus (COVID-19) on the
financial position/future cash flows of the Company. In view of the highly uncertain economic
environment, a definitive assessment of impact on the subsequent periods is highly dependent
upon circumstances as they evolve.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these aforesaid matters.
Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

[n connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other
information and. in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. The Director’s report is not made available to us as at the date of this auditor’s
report. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash tlows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
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using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error.
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the override
of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™). issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure [ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion

paragraph. obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) Except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph. in our opinion,

proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books:

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other

(d)

(e)

(1)

)

Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualitied Opinion
paragraph above, in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

The going concern matter described in Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern
paragraph above. the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph and
Emphasis of Matter paragraph above and Qualified Opinion paragraph of “*Annexure II” to this
report, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure II” to this report;

In our opinion. the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31. 2020 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule I1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014. as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 29 to the Ind AS financial statements:

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:
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i1i.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

'&M

per Sandeep ‘(arnani .I (Benaall 4
Partner :
Membership Number: 061207

UDIN: 20061207AAAACI2020

Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date: June 18, 2020
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ii)

iii)

iv)

V)

vi)

vii)

Annexure I referred to in clause 1 of paragraph on the report on other legal and regulatory
requirements of our report of even date

Re: GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

b) Fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a
regular programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the title deeds
(Including the title deeds of the immovable property mortgaged with the lenders as security for the
borrowings and confirmed by the lenders) of immovable properties included in fixed assets are held in
the name of the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification. There was no inventory
lyving with third parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans.
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii)(a). (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans
to directors including entities in which they are interested and in respect of loans and advances given,
investments made and. guarantees, and securities given, as applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly. the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, related to generation of electricity and are of the opinion that prima facie. the specified
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however. made a detailed
examination of the same.

a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund. employees’ state insurance, income tax, duty of
customs, goods and services tax. cess and other material statutory dues as applicable to the Company.,
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight
delay in a few cases.

b) According to the information and th]dnﬂtmll:‘ given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund. employees™ state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, goods and services tax.
cess and other material statutory dues. as applicable to the Company, were outstanding, at the year end,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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¢) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, service tax, duty of
customs. duty of excise, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statue | Nature of | Amount Period for which | Forum where dispute is

dues (Rs. In | amounts relates | pending

lakhs) to
The Customs Act, | Customs 5.910.57 January 2004 to | Supreme Court of India
1962 duty September 2006
Andhra Pradesh | Electricity | 6,310.61 September 2006 | Chief Electrical
Electricity Duty Act | Duty to March 2017 Inspectorate,
& Rules. 1939 Government of Andhra
Pradesh

viii) The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing dues in respect of a financial institution

ix)

X)

Xi)

Xii)

or bank or to government or dues to debenture holders during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not
raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans
hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
Ind AS financial statements and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and
employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion. the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore. the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, transactions with the

related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act. 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS financial statements. as required by the applicable
accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xiil) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance

sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under
clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and. not commented upon.
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xv) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in
section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence. reporting requirements under clause 3(xv) are not
applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the provisions of section
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration number: 1010490W/E300004

@‘F %andeep Farnani
Partner

Membership number: 061207
UDIN: 20061207AAAACI2020

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 18, 2020
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Annexure II to the independent auditor’s report of even date on the Ind AS financial statements
of GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GMR Vemagiri Power
Generation Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “*Guidance Note'’) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (““ICAT’"). These responsibilities include the design. implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Ind AS
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of the Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures



S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants ) . . ‘
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the Ind AS financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to
these Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Ind AS financial statements. including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit. the following material
weakness has been identified as at March 31. 2020:

(a) The Company’s internal financial control with regard to assessment of carrying value of
intangible and other assets as more fully explained in note 34 to the Ind AS financial statements
were not operating effectively and could potentially result in the Company not providing for
adjustments that may be required to be made to the carrying value of such net assets.

A “material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control
over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects, maintained adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements as of
March 31. 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAI and except for the possible effects of the material weakness described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as of
March 31, 2020.

(g
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Explanatory paragraph

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAL as specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020. and the related Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information. This material weakness was considered in
determining the nature, timing. and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31. 2020 Ind
AS financial statements of the Company and this report affects our report dated June 18, 2020, which
expressed a qualified opinion on those Ind AS financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101 049W/E300004

Rades Car o

per Sandeep !(amani
Partner

Membership Number: 061207
UDIN: 20061207AAAACI2020

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 18, 2020



GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201 KA 1997PLC032964
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2020

Assets

(1) Non-current assets
Property, plant and equi pment
Investment property
Intangible assers
Fnancial asses

(1) Other financial assets

Other non current asset
Nof-current tax assets (net)

2) Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
(1) Cash and cash equivalents
(11) Bank balances other than (i) above
(1i1) Other financial assets
(rher current assets

Total assets (1) +(2)

Equity and labilities
(' Equity

Equity share capital

Onher equity

Total equity

Liabilities

(2) Non-current liahilities
Net employee defined benefit liabilities
Government grant

(3) Current liabilities
Fnancial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i1) Trade payables
- Total outstanding due to micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Total outstanding due o creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities
Government grant
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Liabilities for current tax (net)

Total Lishilities
Total equity and liabilities (1) + (2) +(3)

Summary of significant acc ing policies

Notes As at Asat
Rs. in lakhs. Hs in lakhs.
3 27834 28006
4 25349 25349
5 4225725 4681681
(] 5422 4967
1o - R12
1281 099
42.856.11 47,409.14
7 79.14 T.07
8 11342 132,66
9 - =
6 406 0383
10 2821 3741
22483 24797
43,080.94 47,657.11
11 2745001 2745001
12 (2,842.89) 212762
24,607.12 29.577.63
17 081 -
18 217569 243244
2,176.50 243244
13 18333 L12635
14
- 6.89
504296 393042
15 671867 630242
18 25675 256.75
16 181240 2,833.79
17(b) 125981 1.167.02
2340 2340
1629732 15,647.04
1847382 1807948
43,080.94 47,657.11

rd
L]

The accompanying notes are n integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even dute

For 5.R.Batliboi & Asociates LLP
ICAI firm registration number: 10 1049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants
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per Sandeep Kamani
Partner
Membership number: 061207

Place: Benguluru
Date: June I8, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

GMR Vemagiri Power G

ion Limited

Sanjay Narayan Barde
Director
DIN: 03140784

CF cramanm K

Ramanamurthy P
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 18, 2020

o /Mual Jl S —
o & AGg e — L8 r\,:p‘;/

Nirjhar Sarkar
Director
DIN: 0358 1604
Nodli hadldl-
Nidhi Chandok

Company Secretary




GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

No March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
- Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Income
Revenue from operations 19 114.90 105.84
Other income 20 310.28 509.02
Total income (1) 425.18 614.86
Expenses
Sub-contracting expenses 230.07 273.93
Consumption of stores and spares 547 25.39
Employee benefit expenses 21 677.68 853.05
Finance costs 2 906.73 1,071.98
Depreciation and amortisation expenses pL 4,562.35 4.562.69
Other expenses 24 1,461.13 1.906.78
Total expenses (I) 7,843.43 8,693.82
(Loss)/profit before tax (III=I-I) (7418.25) (8,078.96)
Tax expenses (IV) 25
- Current 1ax - -
- Deferred tax - 7.257.15
(LossY profit for the year (after tax) (V=III-IV) (7418.25) (15.336.11)
Other comprehensive income
A (i) ltlems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Re-measurement gains/ {losses) on defined benefit plans 0.40 5.68
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax (VI) 0.40 5.68
Total comprehensive (loss)/fincome for the year (VII=V4+VI) (7.417.85) (15,330.43)

Earnings per equity share (nominal value of share Rs.10 cach):
Basic and diluted (Rs.) 26 (2.70) (5.59)
Summary of significant accounting policies 22

The accompanying notes are an integml part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP

ICAI firm registration number: 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited

. /ﬂ}_'}—,ﬁ-__‘ ) _D’\jb\i’/ -
S S8, Sanjay Narayan Barde  Nirjhar Sarkar

=7 3\ Director Director

!'E‘:';(BSFV;]E‘-E-’--'I":'/' D DIN: 03140784 DIN: 0358 1604
@Q,,l.uq.f Eau.._p\.. \3’ -,}\__J_/ / N L [ I 0
per Sandeep Karnani '\"ﬂ-'n_ X P GM“""E& M["‘ M -7
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GMR Vemuagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN;: U2I201KA 1997PLCO329%64
Cush Mow statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)
o == Particulars March 31, 2020) March 31, 2019]
A. CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Laows) f profit before tax {TAIR25) ( 8.078.96)
Non-cash adjustments 1o reconcile (lossyprofit before tx 1o net cash flows:
Add: Dep fon and isation exp 456235 456260
Exchonge differences (net) 17842 103.90
Income from government grants 256.75) (256.75)
Provision for doubtful advances / advances written of f 512 66.57
Finance costs 906,73 LO71.98
Interest income 6.22) (6.99)
Operating (loss) / profit before working capital changes 12,0258.00) (2.537.56)
Working capital adjustments:
Increase in trde payables, provisions, other liabilities and other financial liabilities 85391 41193
Decrease / (Increase) in other assets and other financial assets 199 43m
Decrease / (Increase) in mventories 2.07) 1.34
Cish generuted from / (used in) operations (L7217 (2,081.2T)
Direat taxes pad (net of refunds) (1182 240 |
Net cash Mlow from / (wsed in) operating activities (1,183.99) (LUT8.8T7))
B. CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of propenty, plant and equif meluding inmngnble assets (1.07) -
{Investments in} / Maturity of deposits for a period exceeding three months (net) . 5605
Interest received on bank deposit / athers 6.05 o]
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities 4.98 6332
C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contribution from parent (net) 247 213450
Repayment of shor term bormwings 943.02) -
Finance costs pakl 344.55)] (10.63)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities L159.77 212387
Net (decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equisalents 1924 108.32
Cish and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 13266 4
Cush and eash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 8) 11342 13266
Expk ¥ nules o of cash flows
1. Changes in Kabilities arising from financing activities -
Lisbilities arising from financing activities
Long term horrowings Short term borrowings
(refer pote 13) irefer note 13)
As at April 01, 2018 2864915 Ay
Cash flows - 213450
Non-cush changes:
Conversion of CRPS to CCPS. Refer note 12(a) (25,649.15) -
Trunsfer to capiml comribution from parent. Refer note 12{a) - 14.330.49)
As at March 31, 2019 - L12635
Cash flows - (943.02)
Non-cash changes - -
As ut March 31, 2020 - 18303
e e

Summary of significant nocounting policies

The panymg notes are mtegral pan of the financial sttements.
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GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201 KA1997PLC032964

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020
(A} Equity Share Capital:

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at March 31, 2019
As at March 31, 2020

(B) Other Equity*

As at April 01, 2018

{Loss) / profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year®®

Adjustment on account of conversion of CRPS 10 CCPS proe o the redemption iemnm. Refer
Hid)

Adjustment © borrowings pursuant 1o conversion of CRPS 1o CCPS. Refer 11(d)

Interest free loan from parent company

Reversal of deferred tax lisbility pursuant 1o premature convension of CRPS 1o CCPS. Refer
note 25

As ot March 31, 2019

(Loss) / profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year ™

Interest free loan from parent company

As at March 31, 2020

*Also refer note 12,

Number Rs. in lnkhs

274,500,140 27,450.01

274,500,140 27,450.01

(Rs, in lakhs)
Compulsorily Cuapital contribution
Equity R OF  Convertible Preference  from parent - Interest  Securities premium  Retuined earnings Total
Share ("CCPS') Capital free loun
23,939.64 = T oE 199,99 (46918.37) (22,778.74)
- - (1533611 (1533611
= - 5.68 5.68
(21.350.85) 21,350.85
28,649,15 . 4 28,649.15
- 4,330,449 - 4,330.49
7,257.15 : 725715
984594 50,000.00 4.330.49 199.99 (62248.80) 212762
= . = = (1418.25)  (TA18.25)
. R = & 0.40 0.40
: . 244734 . . 244734
__9ms 50.000.00 677753 199.99 (69,666.65)  (2842.89)

**As required under Ind AS compliant Schedule [11, the Company has recognised measurement gainsAlosses) of defined benefit plans of Rs. 0.40 Lakh (March 31, 2019; Rs. 5.68 lakhs) as part of retained earnings.

Summary of significant sccounting policies

e 5
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The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial eatements.
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GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964

Notes to the finandal statements for the vear ended March 31 2020

Corporate information

GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited ('GVPGL' or ‘the Company’) is 4 public limited Company domiciled in India and is incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at Number 25/1. Skip House,
Museum Road. Bangalore, India.

The Company is engaged in the business of generation and sale of power.

The Ind AS financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors
on June 18, 2020,

Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its Ind AS financial statements are listed below. Such accounti ng
policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these Ind AS financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of preparation

The Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of
Schedule TII to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule IT1).

The Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities. (refer accounting
policy regarding financial instruments) which have been measured at fair value.

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (“Rs™) which is the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates. All the values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs (INR 00.000) except when otherwise indicated.

Going Concern

The Company has incurred net loss of Rs. 7.417.85 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2020 and Rs. 15.330.43 lakhs during the year ended
March 31, 2019 and has accumulated losses of Rs. 69.666.65 lakhs as at March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 62.248 80 lakhs) and its current
liabilities exceeded its current assets as at March 31, 2020 by Rs. 16.072.49 lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. 15.399.07 lakhs) as the Company has been
facing shortage of natural gas supplies since commencement of operations and has completely ceased operations since September 2016. The parent
company has committed to provide necessary support to the Company as may be required for the continuance of its normal business operations
and repay its liabilities. Also refer note 34.

Impact of implementation of new standards/amendments:

During the year ended March 31, 2020. the Company has applied Ind AS 116 “Leases™ for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as
a result of adoption is described below.

Several other amendments apply for the first time for the year ending March 31. 2020, but do not have an impact on the Ind AS financial statements
of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards, amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective/notified.

(i) Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-Incentives and Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease). The standard sets out the principles for the recognition. measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees (o recognise most leases on the balance sheet.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or
finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does not have a material impact for leases where the Company is
the lessor.

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption, with the date of initial application on April 01, 2019.
Under this method. the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial ly applying the standard recognised at the date of
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GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964

Notes to the finandal statements for the vear ended March 31 2020

initial application. The Company elected w use the transition practical expedient to not reassess whether a contract is. or contains. a lease at April
01.2019. Instead. the Company applied the standard only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 and Appendix
C of Ind AS 17 at the date of initial application. The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the
commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option (short-term leases). and lease contracts for
which the underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets). The adoption of Ind AS 116 had no impact on the Ind AS financial statements of
the Company, where the Company is the lessee.

Referto Note 2.2 (i) Leases for the accounting policy.
(i) Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The appendix addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of Ind AS 12 Income
Taxes. It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of Ind AS 12. nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and
penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Appendix specifically addresses the following:

. Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

. The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

. How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss). tax bases, unused tax losses. unused tax credits and tax rates
. How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The Company determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments
and uses the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

The Company applies significant judgement in identifying uncertainties over income tax treatments. These amendments had no impact on the Ind
AS financial statements of the Company.

(ii) Amendments to Ind AS 109: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Under Ind AS 109. a debt instrument can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, provided that the
contractual cash flows are “solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding” (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument
is held within the appropriate business model for that classification. The amendments to Ind AS 109 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI
criterion regardless of an event or circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives
reasonable compensation for the early termination of the contract. These amendments had no impact on the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company.

(iv) Amendments to Ind AS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to Ind AS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment. curtailment or settlement occurs during a reporting period. The
amendments specify that when a plan amendment. curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting period, an entity is required to
determine the current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement. using the actuarial
assumptions used to remeasure the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that
event. An entity is also required to determine the net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment. curtailment or settlement
using the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event. and the discount rate
used to remeasure that net defined berefit liability (asset).

The amendments had no impact on the Ind AS financial statements of the Company as it did not have any plan amendments. curtailments. or
settlements during the period.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when
itis:

1. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in nommal operating cycle.

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or




GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964

Notes to the finandal statements for the vear ended March 31 2020

iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,
iii. Itis dueto be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period. or
iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The terms of the liability that could. at the option of the counterparty. result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Advance tax paid is classified as non-current assets.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company
has identified twelve months as its operating cycle,

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The Company measures financial instruments, such as. derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuation techniques.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes

place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability. or
b) In the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the dircumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy. described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Ind AS financial statements on a recurring basis. the Company determines whether transfers

have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the finandal statements for the vear ended March 3L 2020

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred 1o the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue
arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit
risks,

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Revenue from sale of energy

Revenue from sale of energy is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the provisions of the Power Purchase Agreement (‘PPA’) and
includes unbilled revenue up to the end of the accounting year. Revenue eamed in excess of billin gs has been disclosed under *Other assets’ as
unbilled revenue and billing in excess of revenue has been disclosed under *Other liabilities’ as unearned revenue.

Claims for delayed payment charges, liquidated damages. penal interest and any other claims, which the Company is entitled to under the PPA.
are accounted for in the year of acceptance.

Rev S i Vi 5 si

The Company has entered into PPA with APDISCOMS and TSDISCOMS (collectively 'the grantors’) for a capacity of 370 MW for a period of
23 years. The Company based on its internal assessment is of the view that the grantor controls or regulates to whom the Company should provide
the services with its power plant, the grantor controls or regulates the price at which the Company has to provide the electricity to the grantor and
the grantor controls the residual interest in the plant at the end of the arrangement’s term as per the terms of the said PPA.

Further. as per the terms of the PPA, Company is eligible 10 receive capacity charges under the PPA up to a PLF of 80% and is eligible for energy
charges for the actual supply of electricity. The Company is also eligible for incentives if the plant operates more than 80% of its capacity and is
liable for disincentives if the operation is less than 80% of the capacity. The operation of the power plant is dependent on the availability of the
fuel which is the responsibility of the Company. Accordingly, the Company has the right to charge the grantors for the electricity supplied and do
not have the unconditional right to receive cash or other financial assets from the grantors. The Company believes that the Concession Agreement
is within the scope of Appendix D of Ind AS -115 'Service Concession Arrangement’ and shall be accounted for using the intangible asset model,
wherein the service concession asset is recognized as an intangible asset in accordance with Ind AS 38 - Intangible Assets. The intangible asset is
amortized using the straight-line method over the life of the Concession Agreement as management believes that straight-line method best reflects
the pattern of consumption of the concession asset,

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred 1o the customer. If the Company performs by transferring
goods or services (0 a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earmned
consideration that is conditional.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assets in section n) Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.. only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (n) Financial instruments — initial recognition and
subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a
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Notes to the finandal statements for the vear ended March 3L 2020

contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Company performs under the contract.

Income from land lease rental

Income from land lease rental is recognised as per the terms of the agreement on the basis of services rendered on a systematic basis.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured either at amortised cost or at Fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded
using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement
of profit and loss.

Taxes on income

Current income tax

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from net profit as reported in the statement of profit and loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using the tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profitor loss (either in other comprehensive income or
inequity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect o situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities in the Ind AS
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet
liability model. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all the taxable temporary differences. In contrast. deferred assets are only
recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be available againgt which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed
at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset (o be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directl y in equity.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Altemative Tax (‘MAT") paid in accordance with the tax laws in India. which is likely to give future
economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordi ngly. MAT is recognized as deferred tax asset
in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be
realized.
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Notes to the finandal statements for the vear ended March 3L 2020

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost and is not depreciated. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

PPE under installation or under construction as at balance sheet are shown as capital work-in-progress and the related advances are shown as
capital advances.

Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/under development as at the balance sheet date and is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss,

When significant pants of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals. the Company depreciates them separately based on their
specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as
areplacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit orloss as incurred. The present
value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria
for a provision are met.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separale assel. as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
any component accounted for as a separate asset are derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant
to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over
their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Category of asset* Estimated useful life
Office equipment s (including computer equipment s ) 3 to 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 — 10 years

* The Company, based on technical assessment made by the technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain items of plant and
equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013,

Further. the management has estimated the useful lives of asset individually costing Rs. 5.000 or less to be less than one vear, whichever is lower
than those indicated in Schedule II. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the
period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively. if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction coss. Subsequent to initial recognition. investment properties are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the investment property less their residual values over their
useful lives specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined by technical
evaluation, over the useful life so determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of
consumption of the future benefits embodied in the investment property. The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each
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financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life / residual value is accounted on prospective basis. Freehold land and
properties under construction are not depreciated.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes.
Fair value is determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from their disposal.

The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.
As at March 31, 2020, the Company only has land leased to one of its group companies as investment property.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at the end of each reporting period with the effect of any change in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattem of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets
with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Company has accounted the following under Intangible assets:

Concession assets as detailed in point ¢. above.

The intangible asset is amortised over the shorter of the estimated period of future economic benefits which the intangible assets are expected to
generate or the concession period, from the date they are available for use.

An asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its future use
or disposal.

The concession asset is amortized using the straight-line method over the life of the Concession Agreement i.e.. 23 years. The end date of the
Concession Agreement is September 15, 2029.

Other Intangible assets consist of computer software acquired separately and is measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, it is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borowing costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset until such time as the assets are substantially ready for the
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
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Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

Shont-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e.. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases of office equipment/premises that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms (classified as accrued rental income in the Ind AS
financial statements). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they
are earned.

Inventories

Components and stores and spares are valued at Jower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of components and stores and spares is determined on
a weighted average basis.

Self- generated certified emission reductions are recognised on grant of credit by United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change
(*UNFCC’) and are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale,

Impairment of non-finandal assets

The Company assesses. at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down 1o its recoverable
amount,

In assessing value in use. the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal. recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified. an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impaimment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the
Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years,
unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products,
industries, or country in which the Company operates. or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For all assets. an assessment is made at each reponting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
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the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount. an impaimment loss is recognised.
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects. when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

If the Company has acontract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision. However, before
a separate provision for an onerous contract is established. the Company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to
that contract.

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e.. the costs that the Company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract
reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract. which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from
failure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract (i.e.. both incremental costs and an allocation
of costs directly related to contract activities).

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirned by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the Ind AS financial statements.

Provisions and contingent liability are reviewed at each balance sheet.
Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, pension fund and superannuation fund are defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable. The Company recognizes contribution payable to provident fund, pension fund and superannuation
fund as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance
sheet reporting date exceeds the contribution already paid. the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then
excess is recognized as an asset 10 the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit grawity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund, The
cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method using actuarial valuation to be carried
out at each balance sheet date.

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans to recognise the
obligation on a net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling. excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability). are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
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a. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment. and
b. The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes
in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

a. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
b. Net interest expense or income.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months. is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the
year-end.

The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to deferits settlement
for twelve months after the reporting date.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contract embodying the related financial
instruments.

Financial assets are classified. at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amontised cost and fair value through profit or loss. The
classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s
business model for managing them. The Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss. irrespective of the business
model.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest income or expense
over the relevant period The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial instrument. or where appropriate. a shorter period.

(a) Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or 1o sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at fair value through the statement
of profit and loss,

For financial assets maturing within one year from the balance sheet date. the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity
of these instruments.
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Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value through the statement of
profit and loss.

The Company recognises impairment loss on trade receivables using expected credit loss model. which involves use of provision matrix
constructed on the basis of historical credit loss experience as permitted under Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments.

For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition. loss allowance equal to twelve months expected
credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments
has significantly increased since initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Company recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount measured at the date of de-recognition and the
consideration received is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost. using the effective
interest rate method where the time value of money is significant. Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at
fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the statement of profit and loss.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short
maturity of these instruments,

a.  Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

b.  De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different temms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such
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an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Off-setting of finandal instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis. to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity. Final dividends on shares are
recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the
Company’s Board of Directors.

Foreign currencies
The Ind AS financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company's functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
However, for practical reasons, the Company uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting
date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions, Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translted using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (ie., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI
or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Exchange differences arising on the retranslation or settlement of other monetary items are included in the statement of profit and loss for the
period.

Corporate social responsibility (‘CSR’) expenditure

The Company charges its CSR expenditure during the vear to the statement of profit and loss.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset. it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful
life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released 1o profit or loss
over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asseti.e. by equal annual instalments. Total grants received
less the amounts credited to the statement of profit and loss at the balance sheet date are included in the balance sheet.
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3 Property, plunt and equip

{(Rs. in kakhs)
Office equi pments
Particalars tinduding comp and fi Vehides Total
tquipmenty)
Cost/Deemed cost
Asal April 01, 2018 5601 1451 135 2778 20995
Addidithons . - - - .
Disposals - - - - .
As ut March 31, 2019 256.01 i 135 778 299.95 |
Additionm - 1.07 - L
Is - - - -
(As at March 31. 2020 25601 1588 135 nas 30102
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2018 486 107 073 16.66
Charge for the year . 09s (] 219 B
isposals . - - - -
at March 31, 2019 - 531 Li6 1292 1959
064 0.09 206 2
- 645 128 14.9% 22.68
25601 9.00 e 1486 TN
256.01 943 0 1280 pay ]
(2) As a1 March 31, 2020, & of the Ci fud b are pledged aganst the bomowings availed by GMR Warors Energy L imiad

('GWELY), a kellow subsidiary. Refer nole 36.

('h)ﬁc&wluthshrmsu:mnnmdounup:mhgkuhmw Energy Limited (GREL). The gross and net hlock of kand given on operating lease has
heen disclosed under Tavestment Propenty’ (refer note 45 and halance Rs. 256,01 Lakhs has been considered shove a¢ Land.

{e) The Company during the year ended March 31, 2017 had adoptad Ind AS under section 133 of the Comparses Act. 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companics (Indian Accounting
Standardy) rules, 2015 and relevant amendiment rules issied thereafler. The Company had svailad the excmption svailshle under Ind AS 101 wherein the carrying value of property,
plant and equipment and intangible asets kas been carvied forwand at the xmount 2 determinad under the previous GAAP as 3t Aprl 01, 2015,

{This space by intentionally lefr Mol )
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4 Investment property

(Rs. o laklis)

Particulars

Investment property

Cost

As at April 01, 2018
Additions

Disposals

25349

As at March 31, 2019

25349

Additions
Disposals

A at March 31, 2020

25349

Accumulated depreciation
Asat April 01, 2018
Charge for the year
Disposals

As at March 31, 2019

Charge for the year
Disposals

As at March 31, 2020

Net book value

As at March 31, 2019

25349

[As at March 31, 2020

15349

Notex
{a) Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property :

(Rs. i lakhs)

Particulars

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Rental income derived from investment property (Note 19),
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and mainkensnee) generating rental income

4343

3969

Direct of g expenses (including repairs and mainke nance) that did not gencrite rental income

Profit/ (loss) arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect expenses

434

Less: depreciation for the year
[Profit / (luss) arising from investn nt properties before indirect exy

43.43

39.69

() The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment propertics and no contrae tual obligasons w purchase,

for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

Fuir value hicrarchy disclosures for investment propertics have been provided in Note 324

construct or develop investment propertics or

(¢} Reconcilintion of fair values of Iumm Property: (Rs. i lakhs )
Particulars Land

As at April 01, 2018 K,154.72
Fair value difference 388,32
Purchases -
As at March 31, 2019 8,543.04
Fair value diffencnce 38832
Purchascs -
As ut March 31, 2020 K.931.36)
*Govemment value of Lind as per the extemal valuation repon is considered as the fair value of investment property.

Key inputs to valuation on investment properties as per the valuation report:
|Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Classification of land Industrial land Industrial land
Govermnment value of land (Rs. in lakhs ) 8.931.36 8.543.04
Total extent of the plot 80 Acres 80 Acres
[Name of valuer M_.V.V Ramnmnujam | M V.V Ramanujam

{ This space is ntensonally left blank. )
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5 Intangible assets

(Rs_ in lokhx)

Particulars

Concession assets

Total

Cost/ Devmed cost
As at April 0L, 2018
Additions
|Disposals

66,488.82

66.512.72

As at March 31, 2019

66,512.72

Additions
Disposals

As at March 31, 2020

66.512.72

Amaortisation
As at April 01, 2018
Churge for the year

D'I!imls

1511255
4.550.46

15,136.45
4,559.46

As al March 31, 2019

19,672.01

19.695.91

Charge for the year
Diposals

4559.56

4.55956

As at March 31, 2020

24.23157

2425547

Net book value

As at March 31, 2019

46,816.81

4681681

As at March 31, 2020

4225728

42,25725

a) As regurds Service Concession Arrangements, refer note 2.2 (¢),

b Also refer note 3 (¢)

(This space is imtentionally left blank )
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Other Mnancial assets (R i lakhs)
Nan current LCurrent
March 31. 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Unsecured, at amortised cost
Non-current bank balance (refer note 9) ol L] 2319 - -
Interest scensed on fived deposits - - 053 036
Security deposin 2445 2448 -
Accrued rental income (refer note 30} 455 - is3 -
Onheer réceivables . - 047
Total S422 49.67 1.06 083
S LIS e MR
Inventories (R én fakis )
_Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Stones, spares and components (i lower of cost and net restisable valie) 79.14 707
Total 79.14 T8
Cash and cash equivalents (R i Lk )
Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Cash and cash equivalents
Bualunces with hanks
- On current scoounts 5025 1410
- Depenits with original maturty of kess than three mombs 6131 11463
Cash on hand 0,86 il
Total 11342 13266
el —
Bank bakinces other than cash and cash equivalents R in lakhs ¢
Non current Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Restricsed halances with bank 2519 2519 .
x19 3519 : :
Amsount disclosed under other non-current financial asvets (refer noe 6) (25.19) (25.19) - -
Total - - s 5
() Refer inne 36,

(h) Ax at Manch 31, 2020, imargin money deposit inchudes deposits amounting 10 Re 25,19 lakis (March 31, 2019 Rs. 2519 fakhs) have been pledged towarnds the Letier of Credit facility availed by the
Company from a hank for the purpose of procurement of gas under the Spet G Sales Agsement enterad into by the Company durmg the year ended March 31, 2018,

Other assets Ry i lakhs )
Nom current Lorrent

March 31, 2620 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Advances o emploves - . - 673
Prepaid enpenses - £12 n2 366
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Advarces apuinst material sod services (refer note 30) - - M2 299
Advances 10 employess - - As9 -
Less: Provision for doubtful sdvances . - (AT {32.99)
Total - 12 2821 3141
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11 Share capital
a) Authorised share caplial Equity Shares Preference Shares
Number (Rs. in lakhs) Number (s in lakhy )
As at April 01, 2018 300,000,000 30,000.00 50,000 50004000
Increase / (decresse; during the year - - - -
As at March 31, 2019 300,000,000 30.000.00 50,000 50,000.00
Increase / (decreimse) during the year - - - -
As st March 31, 2020 300,000,000 30,000.00 S10,000 30,0001 (M)
————— —
) Lssved equity capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10 cich isued, subscribed and fully paid
Number (Rs. in lakhs )
As at April 41, 2018 274,500,140 1745001
Changes during the year - 5
As at March 31, 2019 274.500,140 4500
Changes during the year ~ >
As at March 31, 2020 274.500,140 2745001
e - =
©) Issued preference share capital
Cumulativ ¢ Reds hle Prefy Share Equity component of Compukorily Convertible Preference Shares
I"CRPS") CRPS ('OCPs')
Number (Rs. in lakhs) {Rs. in lakhs ) Number (Rs. in lakhs)
As at April 01, 2018 S0.000 S0,000.00 23939564 - -
Changes during the year, {{refer note § Hdh { SCL000) {00040 00) (14.093.70) 50,000 50,0400, 00
As at March 31, 2019 - - 984594 0,000 20,000.00
Changes during the year. - - - - -
As at March 31, 26020 - - 984594 50,000 B
— === =

ﬁ)mhjlhejmruukdk‘ll\:hll‘lﬂl‘},;lmummI!zwm:ln‘m&uddﬂmmhfmmﬂm&ermdSQM?Qﬂl‘sdl; 100,000 each sl converted the CRPS 1o 50,000,
Q.001% CCPS of Rs. 100,000 each effective from Apeil 01, 2018, Refer below for termnrights mtached w0 0001% CCPS of Rs. 100000 exch.

€ Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has enly ane class of equity diares having par value of R< 1) per share. Every member hokfing squity shares therein shall have viing rights in propartion jo member's share of the paid up
eyuity share capital. The Company dectares and pays dividend in Indian ripees. The dividend proposed by the Boand of direcions is subjedt o the apprival of the sharcholders in ensuing Annual General
meethng,

InmenuuuflhrIi:pmhlﬁlu«lnx('mnpuy.uh&knﬂm@m‘uﬂdhmmlnm@emm‘dﬁec_,_.xﬁ:t:. ion of sll prefi ial The distribution will
be in proportion w the number of equity sharey beld by the shareholders

1) Ternw/ rights attached 1o CRPS
CRPS were for a tenure of ien years and carried o dividend at 7.00% per anoum (‘pa’), CRPS were redeemable & par priot 10 the end of the tenure &t oy (me after one year from the date of allotment. at
the option of subscriber. either purtially or whally, with 2 three months prior notice % the Compary. These have heen converied s S0.000. 0,001 % pa CCPS of Ra, 100,000 each effective April 01, 2018.

#) Ternw/ rights attached to CCPS
COPS are for atenure of fifteen yeurs and carry o dividend ot 0.001% per annum {'pa), Esch CCPS shall be convened into 10,000 equity share of Rs. 10 each of the Company at par at the expiry of fifieen
years from the date of originul issue or af time before the said expiry of fifieen years at the option of the Ci pany or as may be d by the subscriber.

b Shares held by Holding / Ultimate Holding Company / Holding Company and / or their subsidiaries / sssociates.

Out of shares issued by the Company. shares held by s Holding Company, Ultimaie Helding Company and their subnidi / iates ave as below:

(e in labtes)
= March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
GEL, the Holding Company * 2745001 17.450,01
74,500,140 (March 31, 2019: 274,500, 140) equity dhares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
(GEL. the Hokling Company 30,000.00 S0,000,00
50,000 (March 31, 2019 $0,000) CCPS of Ra 100,000 each folly pad
A6 shunes are hekd by the nominees of GEL.
nnmdd-m:;whg-nwmuw

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Number % holding Number % holding

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each lully paid
GEL' 274,500,140 100.00% 274,500,140 100,005
CUPS of Rs. 14,000 cach isued and fuly paid
GEL 540,000 1040005 | S0.000 1L
A per reconhs of the Company, including its regivter of shareholders / members and ather declaration d from share hold ganding heneficial mienest the shove shancholding represemt hoth kegal

and beneficial ownership of shares.
' shutes sre held by the nominess of GEL

Ji Shares reserved for bsue ander options
For detatls of shares reserved for isue on conversion of CCPS, please refer note 1ligh.
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12 Other equity (R in fuukhes §
 March3LW®  March 33019
1248} (i) Capital contribution from parent / redated parties ( Equity compaonent of CRIPS)
Balance at the beginning of the vear 9R4594 393964
Trunsfer to ingruments entinely equity in namire pursaant 0 conversion of CRPS 10 CCPS. Refer 11id) - (21L,350.85)
R | of deferred tax Hability 0 pre-maiire converson of CRPS w0 CUPS. Refer note 25 - 725715
Balance at the end of the year 98459 984594
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
{icers
Balunce at the beginning of the year S0,000.00 -
Transfer from borrowings pu rsiant 1o conversion of CRPS 10 CCPS. Refer L1id) - 2R649.15
Trunder from equity compatent of CRPS purscant to conversion of CRPS w COPS. Refer 1 1id) - 21, 35085
Balance at the end of the year 50,000.00 £0,000.00
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(i) Capital contribution from parent - Interest free loan
Balance it the beginning of the vear 433049 -
Changes during the year (refer note M) 244734 433049
Balance at the end of the y ear 677753 433049
Total (i) 6662177 64,176.43
12ib) Securities prensum
Balance of the beginning and end of the year 1999 199.99
12ic) Retained earnings
Balunce ot the heginning of the vedr (62.245.80) (46,918.37)
Lesw: profic/ (loss) for the year (TAI18.25) 1533641
Lewa: Re-measiretnent kiaes / (gairs) on defined bene fit plans 040 5.68
Balance i the end of the year 16966665 162 24K.50)
Total (a) + ih) + ich (2842.49) 127.62
13 Borrowings (Rs_in Lakha }
Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Loans junsecured. ol amortised cost) (refer note 3)
Loans from GMR Power Corporation Limited (GPCL) ' 159.01 15901
Luans from GMR Generation Assets Limited (GGAL) 2432 96734
183,33 1,126.35
LT e
Aggregate Secuted barrow ings - -
Aggregute Unsecured bomowings 18333 112635
'Loans from GPCL:
Represents bnter-Company Dieposit ( TCD) provided by GPCL and carrics an intercst rte of 70008 pa. (Manch 31, 219 7.00% pa i ICD is repayable on demand.
Represents ICD carrying an interest re of 12.50% pa. (March 31 2019 12.50% A IO s sepayable within one year of wich other time 23 may be numusBy sgread hetween the parties.
14 Trade Payables (R i luskis )
Current
Unsecured., at amortised cost March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Tiotal outstand ing dues of micro and small enterprives’ . 689
Total outdanding dues of croditon other than micro and small enterprises.
i) Trale payables 409024 3.190.57
it} Trade payables 1o nelated parties (refer note 30) 95270 73985
Total 504296 193731
T T
1. Basad on infe ! ilable with the Company, there were o overdue principal amounts / interest payahle for delayed pay to suppliers which are reg d = micro, small or medium

enterprives under The Micro, Small and Medium E Develop Act, 206" {MSMED Act) & o year ends.
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17iby

2. Terms and conditions of the ahove financial labitities:

- Trade payahles are non-interest bearing

- For explanations on the Company s credit risk mans gemeat proceses. refer noke 12 (c)
« The dues jo reluted parties are unsecured.

(R im Lkt )
3. Dischonure as per Section 22 of "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develop Act, 206" Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
The principal smount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid 10 any wpphier 35 & the end of each sccounting
year;
~ Principal Amount 2 689
- inerest due on shove
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of MSMED Act slong with the smounts of the
payment made 10 the supplier beyond the 3ppointad day during esch acoounting year - i
The amount of interest due umd payable for the period of deby in making peyment (which have been pad ban
heyond the appointed duy during the year ) but withott adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act : -
The ansunt of interest sccrad and remaining unpaid ot the end of each accounting vear. . £
The amount of funther inwrest remaining due and pajable cven in the suKceading vears. until such date when the
Interest dues as above are actually puid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance a5 2 deductibde . %
expenditune under section 23 of the MSMED Act.
Dues 10 Micro and Small Enterprises have heen d tor the exient such parties have been identified on the basis of infs dlecied by the e
(hher Minancial abilities 1Rs. in fokivs)
Current
Unsecured, at amortised cost March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Interest sccrued on barrowings (refer note 3y 2623 25643
Non trade pavables (refer note 30) §74.12 991.12
COther payahles 575998 4967.60
Aciried salaries and henefits 5534 5727
otk [SI1T [EITN
Other Habilities (Rs i Judhs )
_ Curremt
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Uneamned revenne 275053 275053
Ststutony abilities 6157 83246
Total 281240 2R3
= T
Net employee defined benefit Habilities (R in ladhs )
Non current Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Proviian e suplyes losiel —_— e - M I March 312019
Provision for gramity (refer note 28 ) 081 - - ~
Total [T = F 3
Proviskons (R, in fakhy )
Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Provision for operstion and mai (refer note 35) L159.07 106321
Provision for compe nuted shecnces 100.74 103.81
Total 1,259.51 1.167.02
—
Government grants (R i fudehs )
Non current Cuarrent
March 11, 2620 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31. 2019
Government grants 217369 243244 256.75 25675
Total 217569 24324 215675 156,75
T
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
As at the beginning of the year 268019 294594
Received during the vear - -
Relemad to the statement of profit and koss 1256.75) 1256.75)
As at March 31, 2020 24324 268919

(2) During the year ended March 31, 2010, the Company was grasted a nefund of customs duty of Rs6.909.58 lakhs which was paid earlier towiands the import of plant and machinery. Subsequently, the
Company received a refund of Rs. 5910.57 fakhs,

During the year endad March 31, 2011, the Company d an » flumlﬁ:mdﬂuhi-Diuu&-mldﬁmeignfndu‘mlimmﬂuundmlyhmu:amhldu
received in 2009-10 10 the extent of the unpaid amount of Rs. 999,01 kkhs,

Eltring!heyzlmi:dﬁamh.‘I.Mlltkcnmmmﬁwamrmmtmmhmhnnndm wmmams‘amﬂlmmm.nnmm.mga:yum;
refund of the smount the Company received earlier. Basad on an expert’s opinion Lhe manage ment is confident that the dury drawback refund granted earlier was apprapriate and that the cance llation of the
d.ltydruu'hm'kmfl.mdhuumﬂ.hcmﬁam‘mwht!unnﬂeleilhngllmllnld‘lmddlmS.inuihdyméwhyu:er‘ iy it the finanicil of the
Company.

Tht(‘.‘mnpuyhuﬁl-:dnmlpﬂilinnuilhlhrllun"blrIli;hcumu(nplinNwmmmll.I.'lwq:h;uc-du.lMBLS!!.H:WMMMMM‘*W(MMM
and will be concluded along with other similar cases and is pending finalization as s March 31, 2020

The Company considers Rs, 521057 lakhs a government gramt received as per Ind AS 20 - "Accounting for Government Grants and Discloaire of G At * and pnises the same
h\muma\tmig)!iwmhhthm(ﬂmﬁﬂlmnmﬂdmaymﬁ\hpeﬁn
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19 Revenoe from opernthons (Rs. in Lakhs)
Orther operating revemue:® March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Landl lease remal 84 .65

Rental wowards Scilities 147 66.15

Total 114.90 105.84
—

"Refer note 30 for velated party transactions,

0 Oiber income (R in fokies )
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Governmment grants {refer note 1§) 256.75 256.75
Misce llaneous mcoime 47.31 24528
Interest income on
- Bank deposits 535 594
- Others 0.87 LOS
Total 31028 509.02
21 Employee beneflt expenses (R i lakhs)
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Salaries, woages and bonus 6079 TH0.37
Cantribution to provident and other funds (refer note 28) 4955 5443
Giratuity ex penses { efer note 28) 997 113
Seadl welfare expenses 537 672
Total 67768 #5302
22 Finance costs (Rs in Lukha )
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Interest expenses 903.77 1LAS3.0K0)
Bank ¢harges 296 18.98
Total 90673 Igl.ﬂ
23 Dep and amortis P (Ry. i ks )
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment irefer nate 3) 1M i
Amortisstion of intangible axsets (refer note §) 4350 56 4,559 46
Towt o ] =
24 Other expenses® (Ry. im fkivs )
March 31, 2020 March 31. 2019
Electricity and wiser charges. 43475 56526
Rent 092 279
Rates atd tes .32 7545
Isumnce LIRIL) 90,72
Repairs and musntenance I67.11 190.13
Security expenses 204 12459
Travelling snd conveyance kA | 7236
Legal and professional fees AT insy
Provision lor doubiful advinces/sdvances written off i 66 57
Paymen o suditors frefer details below ) 18.20 17.86
Exchange differences (net) 186,02 135,65
Miscellaneous expenses 3305 |
Total 1461.13 1.906.78

“*Refer note 30 for reluted party transactions,

” to auditors (inchuding goods and service tax) (R in dakhs )
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
As auditor :
Anlit and review e 17.70 17.70
Reimbursement of expenses 0.50 0.16_
Total 18.20 17.86
25 Income Tax

The Company has o tanable income for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, acconfingly, 60 current tax expenie has been recorded.

‘I"hct‘ampm}hndsmﬁcnlcnyfw-dmud!nInu.-xSixellnmpmhﬂelhmﬂepmﬁmlhrurihhkngiliwmw‘ ‘ dhifle s canl be utilived, no deferred tax
isnet han been recognined in the financial suements for the unused carry forwand tax koses s the tansble fouses for the year

hmmwhhnn—:udpﬂndh-—h‘lhm

(Re. in Jukhs )
Muarch 31, 2020 March 31. 2019

~Currem tax = %
- Deferred my* - TI57.18
Total taxes - 125718

* Pertuins to charge off of deferred @y asser which was creuted agsind deferrod tax Sahility on the emporary differeoce of CRPS. During the previows year, pursuant 1o conversion of CRPS 10 CCPS x
detailed in note L), deferred tax fuhiling m-uvmnllnqﬂyandwmpuﬂngch&u«lmmmntmlnmﬁndlnsnaoei:wnmmlﬂicﬁ.t-ﬂcpnﬂ(wilhnuwew
which the deductible remporary differences can be utifised.
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26 Earnings Per Share ('EPS')

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/ loss for the year atributable 1o equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Panly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share 1o the extent that they were entitled to participate
in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares omstanding during the period is
adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue. share split. and reverse share split {consolidation of shares) that have changed the

number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted EPS smounis are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity sharcholders (after adjusting for interest on the convertible securities) by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issped on conversion of

all the dilutive potennal equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

‘Mmhm March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Face value per share (Rs. per share) 10 10
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing EPS ( Basic and Diluted) 274,500,140 274,500,140
(Loss) / profit for the year attributable to equity share holders (Rs. in lakhs) (7418.25) (15.336.11)
EPS - Basic and diluted (Rs. per share) (2.70) (5.59)

Considering that the Company has incurred losses during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, the allotment of conversion option in case of
CCPS would decrease the loss per share for the year {anti-dilutive ) and accordingly has been ignored for the purpose of calculation of diluted eamings per share.

(This space is intentionally left Blank)
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27 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make Judgements. estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying discl and the disclosure of contingent liabilitics. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Uncenainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that reguire a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or linbilities affected in future periods.

The estimate and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on ongoing basis. Revisions 10 accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which are estimate is revised and
future periods affected.

Significant judgements and the estimates relating to the carrying values of assets and liabiliies include provision for employee benefits and other provisions, commitments and
contingencies and determination of carrying value of intangible assets including assets accounted under service concession arrangement.

A. Judgements
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements:

(i) Service concession arrangements
The Company has considered the PPA entered into by it as concession ammngement as per Appendix D of * Service Concession Arrangements” under Ind AS 115, For details, refer
note 2.2 (c).

(i) Going concern assessment

Though the Company has ceased operations since September 2016 on account of umavailability of adequate supply of natural gas and is dependent on the Parent Company to
provide support to service its operational expenditure and repay its fiabilitics, the management is confident of ostablishing profitable operations in the immediate future and
continues o prepare its financial statements on a going concem basis.

Refer note 2.1 and note 34 for further details.

B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty a the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets mnd habilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments. however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that
are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

Contingencies

Contingent linbilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims aguinst the Company, including legal and contractmal claims. By their nature,
contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur o fail t occur. The assessment of the existence. and potential quantum. of contingencies
inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of sstimates regarding the outcome of future events. In respect of financial guarantees provided by the
Company to third parties and other contingent liabilities referred in note 29, the Company considers that it is more likely than not that such an amount will not be payable. Refer
note 29 for further disclosure. Further, the Company has considered cenain claims as detailed in note 34 in the futare cashflows for the assessment of the appropriatencss of the
carrying value of its intangible and other assets as at March 31, 2020.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit grawity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined wsing actuarial valuations. An actuarial valvation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the futre. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates, Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term mature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject t change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
govemment bonds,

mmmditym:isbascdunpnbﬁclyavn’hhkmﬁlytabksfulndiammmulhyubhtmdwchugcmlyuhmxwlmu p to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gmtuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Refer note 28 fir further disclosures.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash gencrating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. which is the higher of its fuir value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. In calculating value in use. the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present valoe using a predax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the ssset. In
determining net selling price, recent market ransactions are taken into account. if available. The recoverable amomnt is sensitive (o the discount rate wsed for the DCF model as
well as the expected futre cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. Refer note 34 for assumptions considered in the assessment of the carrying value of
intungible and other assets.
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28 a) Gratuity and other post employment benefit plans

Contribution to provident and other funds included under employee benefit expense (note 21) are as below:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Provident and pension fund 31.40 36.73
Superannuation fund 18.15 18.10
49.55 54.83

b Defined benefit plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972. Under the act. every employee who has completed five
years or mare of service gets gratity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The level of benefits provided depends on the
member's length of service and salary o retirement age. The scheme is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance

sheet for gratuity benefit:

i. Net employee benefit expenses {recognised as "Employee benefit expenses” (note 21)):

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Current service cost 10.05 10,99
Net interest cost on defined benefit obligations/ (assets) (0.08) 0.14
Cost recognised in the statement of profit or loss 9.97 1L13
ii. Remeasurement (gains) / loss recognised in other comprehensive income:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations due to defined benefit obligations experience (5.32) (5.18)
Acwarial (gain)/ loss on obligations due to defined benefit obligations assumpiion changes 517 -
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising during the year (0.15) (5.18)
Return on plan assets ( lesser)/ greater than discount rate (0.25) 0.50
|Aclunrhl loss / (gain) recognised in OC1 10.40) (5.68)
Balance sheet
iii. Net defined benefit asset/ (linbility ):

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Defined benefit obligation 95.83 96.49
Fair value of plan assets 95.02 1i4.61
IPlaumnfllhlililyl (0.81) 8.12
iv. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars March 31. 2020 _March 31, 2019
Opening defined benefit obligation 96.49 9271
Interest cost 7.21 674
Current service cost 10.05 10.99
Acquisition adjustments (14.83) 10.70)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations due to defined benefit obligations expenience (5.32) (5.18)
Acuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations due to defined benefit obligations assumption changes 5.7 -
Benefits paid (294) (8.07)
Closing defined benefit obligation 95.83 96.49
v. Changes in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Opcning fair value of plan assets 10461 76.28
Expected return on plan asser 7.30 6.60
Acquisition adjustment (14.83) (0,70}
Contribution to the fund 0.63 30.00
Return on plan assets (lesser)/ greater than discount rate 0.25 0.50
Benefits paid (294) (8.07)
Closing fair value of plan assets 95.02 104.61

The Company expects t contribute Rs. 0,63 lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs 8.00 lakhs ) towards gratmty fund during the year April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021,
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vi. The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Investments with i nsurer 100% 100% |

vii, The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plans are shown below:

!Parth:uhm March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Discount rate (in %) 6.80% 7.60%
Salary escalation (in %) 6.00% 6.00%
Attrition rate (in %) 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality rate Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives

Monality (2006-08) Montality (2006-08)
(maodified) Ult| (maodified) Ult)
Notes:

1. Plan assets are fully represented by balance with the Life Insurance Comporation of India.
2. The expected return on plan assets is determined consi
historical results of the retim on plan assets and the Company's policy for plan asset management.

dering several applicable factors mainly the composition of the plan assets held, assessed risks of asset management,

3. The estimates of future salary increase in compensation levels, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such

as supply and demand in the employment market,
4. Plan Characteristics and Associated Risks:

The Gratuity scheme is a Defined Benefit Plan that provides for a lump sum payment made on exit either by way of retirement. death or disability. The benefits are defined on the
basis of final salary and the period of service and paid as lump sum at exit. The Plan design means the risks commonly affecting the liabilities and the financial results are
expected 1o be:

a. Discount rate risk : The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit abligation will tend to
increase

b. Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligaton

¢. Demographic risk : This is the nisk of variability of results due to unsystematic natore of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of
these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important
not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a shor career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service

employee.

viii. A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are as shown below:

(Rs. in lakhs)
[Particulars March 31. 2020 March 31, 2019
Discount rate
{lmpact on defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase in discount rate (6.39) (6,90
Impact on defined benefit obligation doe to | % decrease in discount rate .21 T.86
Altrition rate
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase in aurition mte 045 0.84
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to 1% decrease in atirition rate (0.50) (0.93)
Salary escalation rate
|Impact on defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase in salary escalation rate 539 f.63
Impuact on defined benefit obligation due to 1% decrease in salary escalation rate (5.31) (6.26)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding ail other assumptions constant. In practice. this is unlikely to oceur and changes in some of
the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability

recogmised in the balance sheet.

ix. The following are the expected benefit payments from the defined benefit plan in future vears:

(Rs. in lakhs)
[Particulars March 31, 2020
March 31, 2021 9.01
March 31, 2022 T.15
March 31, 2023 944
March 31, 2024 T.12
March 31, 2025 10.99
March 31, 2026 to March 31, 2030 7941

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 10 years (March 31, 2019: 10 vears).

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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29 Commitments and Contingencies

I Leases
Company as lessee
The Company has lease contracts for centain premises. The lease term is for a period of cleven months and renewable as mutmally agreed between the parties. There is no
escalation clause in the lease agreement. There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements. There are no subleases. The Company applies the “short-term lease” and
‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) amounts to Rs. 20,92 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2020, (March 31, 2019: Rs. 217.91 lakhs.)

Company as a lessor

The Company has entered into non-cancellable and cancellable operating leases on its investment property consisting of land and for usage of its facilities with a group
company, respectively. These leases have n term of 25 years. These leases include a clause 1o enable upward revision of the rental charge by 5% once in three years. The
rental income recognised in the statement of profit and loss is Rs. 114.91 lakhs (March 31. 2019: Rs. 10584 lakhs)

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at the year end are as follows:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars March 31 2020 March 31,2019
Within one year 41.67 40.63
Alter ane year but not more than five years 216.64 21352
More than five years 466.01 510.81
Total 72432 764.96

I Contingencies

A. Contingent Liabilities

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Custom duty demands (refer note 18(a)) 591057 591057
Electncity duty demand (refer note a below) 6.310.61 631061
Income tax demands - 144.32
Bank Guarantee 2.10 22,10
Total 12.243.28 12,387.60

a) During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company had received a demand of Rs. 4.821.39 lakhs for the period September 2006 0 November 2011 from the Chief
Electrical Inspecioraie, Government of Andhra Pradesh (‘GoAP”). whereby GoAP has imposed electricity duty on generation and sale of electrical energy calculated at the
rate of six paise for cach electricity unit generated by the Company since commencement of commerdial operations. Based on an internal assessment and an expert opinion,
the management is confident that the provisions of Electricity Duty Act and Rules, 1939 in respect of payment of electricity duty are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly. electricity duty liability of Rs. 6,310.61 lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. 6.310.61 lakhs} for the period September 2006 o March 2019 has been considered as a
contingent liability,

b) The Company has rade payables (including interest) amounting to Rs. 684.73 lakhs as at March 31, 2020 towards purchase of services outstanding beyond three years
as ot the year end. As per the Master Direction - External Commercial Borrowings. Trade credits and Structured Obligations dated March 26, 2019 issued by the Reserve
Bank of India (the RBI') such trade credits outstanding beyond three years are considered as External Commercial Borrowings. The Company has submitted an application
to its Authorised Dealer for obtaining an approval from RBI to make the payment and is currently awaiting RBT's approval.

The management is in the process of regularising these overdue payables and is confident that required approvals would be received and penalties, if any that may be
imposed on the Company would not be material. Accordingly, no adjustments have been made by the management in these financial siatements in this regard.

€) The atoresaid amounts under dispute are as per the demands from regulatory authorities for the period and has not been adjusted 1o include further interest and penalty
leviable, if any. at the time of final outcome of the appeals.

d) The arrears of cumulative dividend (net of finance cosis) on preference share capital (including applicable dividend distribution taxes under the IT Act) held by GEL
w.e.f October 28, 2016 (previously by GPCL) is Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019: Rs. Nil) as the comulative dividend was waived by GEL during the vear ended March 31, 2019.

€) There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Providemt Fund dated Febnmry 28, 2019, As a matter of caution, the
Company has made a provision on a prospective basis from the date of the SC order. The Company will update its provision, on receiving further clanty on the subject.
B. Litigation provided for

a) The management of the Company has created a provision of Rs. 14.80 lakhs (March 31. 2019: Rs. 14.80 lakhs) against dispute towards utilisation of duty entitlement
pass book scrips for customs duty payment on certain import procurements.
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HI A search under Section 132 of the IT Act was carried out at the premises of the Company by the Income Tax Authorities on October 11, 2012, subsequently followed by
search closure visits on various dates, to check the compliance with the provisions of the IT Act. The Income Tax Depantment has subsequently sought certain

information/clarifications. The Company has not received any show cause notice/demand from the Income Tax Auth

The gement of the Company believes that
it has complied with all the applicable provisions of the IT Act with respect to its operations.
|Period of agreement {Details of commitments ]

Power Purc

hasc Agreement and subsequent|23 years from Commercial Operation Date ( *COD') (i.c.

September 16, 2006).

 The Company has committed to sell and the DISCOMS
have committed to purchase all available capacity of the
project linuted to the installed capacity of 370 MW,

|The Company has committed to provide availability]
declaration of at least 80% Plant Load Factor (‘PLF))
over a period of taniff year, as defined in the PPA, w
DISCOMS. Failure by the Company to muke the plant
available for the committed PLF will reduce the
consideration for the sale of energy as well as attracy
disincentives,

(]

Long Term Assured Parts Supply Agreement and
amendments thereto

41 years from date of agreement. ie. December 29, 2003
or 120,000 factored fired hours whichever is eartier.

[ The Company has committed to pay vanable charges on
a quarterly / milestone basis. based on the actual fired
hours of the plant.

Llong Term Maintenance Agreement and
amendments thereto

41 years from date of agreement. Le. December 29, 2003
or 120,000 factored fired hours whichever is earfier.

The Company has committed to pay fixed quarterly}
charges in addition 10 vanable quanerly charges. which
are based on the actual fired hours of the plant. Further,
the Company has commitied 10 pay incentives on
inment of certain parameters by the sub-contractor.

(This space is imentionally left blank)




GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): UZ3201KA 1997PLC032964
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020

30 Related Party transactions
a) Names of related parties and description of relationship:

SL No. | Description of relationship Name of the related parties
(i) | Enterprises that control the Company GMR Energy Limited (*GEL’), the Holding Company
(@) | The enterprises that joimsly comtrol the Holding Company and sl oy oo oo (GGAL) ( farmerly known as GMR Rencwible Energy
subsidiaries and joint ventures / mssociates where transactions have, Limised)
taken place during the year
GMR Infrastructure Limited ("GIL")
GMR Enterprises Private Limited (GEPL)
Raxa Security Services Limited (‘RSSL")
GMR Rajahmundry Energy Limited ("GREL")
GMR Power Corporation Limited ('GPCL)
GMR Corporate Affairs Private Limited (‘GCAPL")
Dethi International Airpont Limited (DIALY)
GMR Vandakshmi Foundation (GVF)
GMR Chhatusgarh Energy Limited (GCEL)
(i) yl::[]!ow subsiciaries where trunsactions have taken place during the GMR W, Encrgy Limited (GWEL)
(iv) | Key managerial personnel and their relatives

Mr. Mathews P — Manager
Myr. Ashish Jain — Chicf Financial Officer (Resigned w.e.f September 28, 2018)
M. Rajesh Agarwal - Chief Fnancial Officer (Appointed w.ef. September 28, 2018 and

|resigned w.e f. July 12, 2019)

Mr. Ramana Murthy P- Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w.e.f. July 12, 2019)
Mr. Sanjay Narayan Barde - Director

Mr. Arunendu Saha - Director (Resigned we.f September 30, 2019)

Mr. Nirjhar Sarkar - Director (Appointed w.ef November 1, 2019)

Mrs. Meena Locham Raghonathan - Director

Mr. Gopal Rao M - Director

Ms. Nidhi Chandok — Company Secretary

Mrs. B Ramadevi - Relative
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b) Summary of transactions and outstanding balances with the above related parties is as follows

(Rs, in lakis)
Year ended
Particulars
s March 31,2 March 31, 2019)
i. Capital contribution from parent - Interest free loan
Transaction with GEL
- 1CD from GEL 2,667.34 2,134.50
- ICD repaid 10 GEL 220,00 -
ii. Short term borrowings - Unsecured
a) Transacton with GGAL
-1CD from GGAL 185.00
-1CD repaid 10 GGAL 1.128.02 -
- Interest on ICD 102.03 12059
- Interest repaid to GGAL M3BR -
by Transaction with GPCL
- Interest on ICD 1232 11,10
- Interest repaid 1o GPCL 0.67 -
fii. Conversion of CRPS to CCPS
- GEL 28,649.15
iv. Trunsfer from borrowings to capital contribution from parent (CCPS)
- GEL - 21959
v. Land lease rental
-GREL 4343 39.69
vi. Rental towards facilities
- GREL 7147 66,15
vii. Rent
-GCAPL - 278
- DIAL 16.64 209.14
viii. Legal and professional fees (cross charges)
-GIL 128.06 97.31
- GEPL . 5.58
ix. Repairs and maintenance
- DIAL - 242
X. Security expenses
- RSSL 3294 124.59
xi. Electricity and water charges
- DIAL 1121 37.59
xii. Miscellaneous expenses
-GVF 24.00 13.16
xii.  Outstanding balance at the year end
March 31,2 March 31, 2019
a)  Short ierm bormwings - Unsecured
-GGAL 2432 967.34
- GPCL 159.01 159.01
b) Contribution from parent (refer pote 12(a))
-GEL
- Equity component of CRPS 9.845.94 984594
-CCPS 50,000.00 50.000.00
- Interest free loan 677783 4,330.49
¢) Non-trade payables - Current
-GREL 874.12 991.12
d)  Trade payables - Current
-GIL 254.04 125,98
-RSSL 27294 240.00
- DIAL 363.57 i3imn
- GVF 46.38 238
- others 15.77 15.77
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e) Other financial asset - Current

~-GWEL - 0.12
-GREL 353
f) Other financial asset - Non-current
-GREL 455
f) Advances against material and services - Current
-GEPL .68 0.68
g} Interest accrued on borrowings
-GPCL 22,10 10.45
- GGAL J3 24598
Remuneration paid w0 Key Managerial Personnel
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Details of Key Managerial Personnel EONAEE S Short term employee
o employee Sitting fees i Sitting fees
benefits
a) Mr. Mathews P — Manager 5256 - 49.62 -
b) _Ms. Nidhi Chandhok — Company secretary 7.50 - 791 S
¢) Mr. Ashish Jain — Chief Financial Officer - 8.01 -
l(Resigned w.e.f from September 28, 2018) =
d) Mr. Ramana Murthy P (Appointed w.ef. July 12, - -
2019) 14.15

Notes:
(i) Refer note 36 with respect to creation of first ranking pan passu charge on the fixed assets and on the excess cash flows of the Company.
(ii) Refer note 4 for the details of land given on operating lease 1o certain related parties.
(i) The remuneration 1o the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions for gratuity and leave benefits. as they are determined on an actuarial hasis
for the Company as a whole.
(iv) Refer note 1 1(d) for conversion of CRPS 1o CCPS,

(v) The above information has been determined 1o the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

(This space is imtentionally left Blank )
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31 Segment Information

The Company has only one reportable business segment, which is generation and supply of power and operates only in India. There are no customers / assets that are located
outside India,

32 Disclosures on Financial instruments

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet items that contain financial
instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recogmised in
respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in accounting policies, to the financial statements,
() Financial assets and liabilities

The following tables presents the carrying value and fair value of each category of financial assets and liahilities:
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Carrying Value Fair Value

March 31,2020 | March 31,2019 | March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Financial assets
At Amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 11342 13266 113.42 132,66
Other financial assets 58.28 5050 58.28 50.50
Total 171.70 183.16 17170 183.16 |
Financial liabilities
Al Amortised cost
Borrowings 183.33 1.126.35 183.33 112635
Trade payables 5.042.96 3.937.31 504296 3.937.31
Others financial lisbilities 6718.67 6.302.42 671867 630242
Total 11.944.96 11,366.08 11.944.96 11,366.08 |

The management assessed the other financial liabilities, bormwings. trade payables. cash and cash cquivalents and other financial assets approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments

Assumptions used in estimating fair value: The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged i a current
trunsaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale

{(b) Fair value hicrarchy
Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): This level of hicrarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference 1o guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical pssets or lishilities. This category consists of investment in quoted exquity shares, and mutual fund investments.

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): This level of hicrarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, cither directly (i.c., as prices) or mdirectly (ie.. derived from prices).

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 33: This level of hicrarchy includes financial assets and lisbilities measured using inputs that are not bused
on observable market daty (unobservable inputs), Fair valves are determined in whole or in part, using a valmtion model based on assumptions that are neither supported by
prices from observable current market ransactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

(i) Shori-term financial assets and lisbilities are stated at carrying valve which is approximately equal to their fair valoe.
(ii) The Company do not have any Level | and Level 2 financial assets / liabilitics as at March 31, 2020, and March 31, 2019, Further, there have been no transfers between Level
1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.
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(¢) Financial risk management objectives and policies

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange raies. interest rates. liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the
fair value of its financial instruments. The Company has a risk management policy which not only covers the foreign exchange risks but also other risks associated with the finmcial assets
and liabilities such as interest rate risks and credit risks. The risk management framework aims 10:

(i) create a stable business planning envimnment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate fluctuations on the Company’s business plan.
(ii) achieve greater predictability 1o earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earmings in advance.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future camings, in realisable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of o
financiul instrument may change as & result of changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, liquidity and other market changes. Future specific market movements cannot be
normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

(a) Market risk - Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair valve or future cash flows of a fimncial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company manages its interest rate
risk by having only fixed rate loans and borrowings,

(b) Market risk- Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair valoe or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate becanse of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates rel ily to the C ¥'s operating activities.

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrite the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before
tax is dve to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and labilities. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars _ Change in USD rate Effect on profit before tax
March 31, 2020 5% (128.46)
5% 128.46
March 31, 2019 5% (112.43)
5% 11243

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss,

The carying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk. The maximum exposure o credit risk is Rs. 171.70 lakhs and Rs. 183,16 lakhs, as at March 31, 2020 and March
31, 2019 respectively, being the total carrying value of balances with bank. bank deposits, loans and other financial assets.

Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. An impairment analysis is performed at
each reporting date. The Company does not hold collateral as security.

Credit risk from balances with bank and financial instittions is managed by the Company’s treasury depaniment in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are
mude only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss
through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

Liquidity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds on a regular basis, The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility.

The Company relies on Group companies for source of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company”s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments

Due within | year Due between 1 to 5 years | Due after 5 vears Total
Year ended
March 31, 2020
Borrowings 183.33 - - 183.33
Oiher financial liabilines 6.718.67 - - 6,718.67
Trade and other payables S5.042.96 | - 5.042.96
L 1084.960 E - 1134496/
Year ended
March 31, 2019
Borrowings 1.126.35 J ~ 1.126.35
Other financial liabilities 6,302 42 | -] 6.302.42
| Trade and other payables 3.937.31 - 3.937.31
11.366.08 : 1136603
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33 Capital mmagement

The Company's capital management is intended to create value for sharcholders by facilitating the meeting of long term and short term goals of the Company.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan coupled with long term and short term strategic investment and expansion plans.
The funding needs are met through equity, cash generated from operations, long term and short term bank borrowings.

For the purpose of the Company’s capitad 2 capital includes issued equity capital, CCPS. capital contribution from parent company in the form of interest free loan,
equity component of CRPS, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, remn capital 1o sharcholders or issue new shares, The Company
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus total debt. The Company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at an optimum level.

(Rs. in akhs)
[Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Borrowings 18333 112635
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 8) (11342) (132.66)
Total debt (i) 69.91 993.69
LCa;l'ﬁ Component
Equity share capital 2745001 2745001
Capital contribution from parent / related parties (Equity component of CRPS) 98454 984594
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share (CCPS') Capital 5000000 50,000.00
Capital contribution from parent - Interest free loan 6,777.83 433049
Securities premium 19999 199.99
|Retained earnings (69.666.65) (62.248.80)
Total Capital (i) 24.607.12 2957763 |
CIEIIIIII hlrrwiulliltid-iil 2467703 38,5?!.12_
Gearing ratio % (i/iii) 0.28% 3.25%

No changes were made in the objectives, policics or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019,

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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34 In view of lower supplies / availability of natral gas 1o the power generating companics in India. the Company is facing shortage of natural gas supply. As a result, the
Company had not generated and sold electrical energy since May 2013 till March 31, 2015, The Company had emerged as a successful bidder in the auction process organised
by the Ministry of Power and operated on an intermitient basis from Angust 2015 ull Sepember 2016, The Company has not been operational since September 2016, The
Company has incurred net loss of Rs. 741785 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2020 and Rs 15,330.43 lakhs during the year ended March 31. 2019 and has
accumulated losses of Rs. 69.666.65 lakhs as at March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 62248 80 lakhs) and its current liabilities exceeded its current assels as at March 31,
2020 by Rs, 16,072.49 lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. 15.399.07 lakhs) primarily because of because of the aforesaid shortage of natural gas supply.

Further, the Company had filed petition claiming losses of Rs. 4470000 lakhs penaining 10 capacity charges for loss of revenue on account of unavailability of the fuel during
the period 2006 and 2008, excluding interest, and based on legal opimion is confident of recovery of such claims. During the vear ended March 31, 2019, the Honourable High
Court of Andhra Pradesh passed its judgement and held that the CERC has the jurisdiction o adjudicate the aforesaid claims of the Company. During the year ended March 31,
2020, the APDISCOMs appealed against the aforessid jndgement before the Honourable Svpreme Court. The Supreme Court vide its order dated February 4, 2020 dismissed
the aforesaid petition of the DISCOMs and held that CERC will have jurisdiction to adjudicate the disputes in the present case and directed CERC to dispose off the petition
filed before it within six months. The matter is pending to be heard before the CERC as at March 31, 2020,

Additionally. during the year ended March 31, 2020, in case of GVPGL litigation with APDISCOMs, wherein APDISCOMS refused to accept declaration of capacity
availability on the basis of deep water gas citing that natural gas for the purpose of PPA does not include Deep Water Gas and consequent refusal to schedule power from the
Company and pay applicable riff including capacity charges, CERC has passed order dated January 28, 2020, declaring that natural gas for the purpose of PPA includes Deep
Water Gas from domestic sources. Accordingly, the Company is entitled 1o claim capacity charges from APDISCOMs from November 2016 based on availability declaration
for generation of power on the basis of deep water gas. along with late payment surcharge.

The Company has calculated a claim amount of Rs. 74,131.34 lakhs for the period from November 2016 till February 2020, As on the balance sheet date, the Company has not
received any of the aforesaid claims and is confident of recovery of such claims in the future based on the CERC Order.

The management is evaluating varions approaches / alternatives to deal with the situation and is confident that Government of India ('Gal') would take further necessary steps /
initiatives in this regard to improve the situation regarding availability of natural gas from altemate sources in the foresceable future. The management has also carried out a
valuation assessment of the Company during the year ended March 31, 2020 which includes cerain assumptions relating to availability and pricing of domestic and imported
gas, future anff, realization of claims for losses incurred in earlier periods from the customer as detailed below and other operating parameters which it believes. reasonably
reflect the future expectations from the project. The management of the Company will monitor these aspects closely and ke actions as are considered appropriate and is
confident that it will be able to generate sufficient profits in future years and meet its financial obligations as they arise.

Based on the aforementioned reasons, business plans. legal opinion and a valuation assessment carried out by an external expen, the management of the Company considers
that the carrying value of the intangible and other assets and going concern assumption as at March 31, 2020 is ppropriate and accordingly the financial statements of the
Company do not include any adjustment that might result from the outcome of this uncerinty. In the meantime, the parent company has committed fo provide necessary
support to the Company as may be required for the continuance of its normal business operations.

Also refer note 2.1, 27(A)ii) and note 37.

35 Provisions

Provision for incentives for operation and maintenance cont ract

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Opening balance L.063.21 1.004.56
Additions during the year (inclusive of exchange differences) 95.86 58.65
Write back during the vear - -
[Clasing . 1.159.07 1.063.21

* Includes Rs. 244,22 lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. 224.02 lakhs) for which commercial invoices have been received by the Company from the service provider.

36 During the year ended March 31. 2017, GWEL a fellow subsidiary has availed borrowings from a bank. pursnant to which a first ranking pari passu charge on the immovable
properties (excluding investment properties) and on the excess cash flows of the Company has been created.

37 The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted busi s Operati d the globe including India. The Company has evaluated impact of this pandemic on its business
operations and based on its review, the current indicatars of future economic conditions and the various matters described in note 34 in these Ind AS financial statements, there
is no additional significant impact on account of COVID-19 in its financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 as the Company has ceased operations since
September 2016 on account of unavailability of adequate supply of natural gas and is dependent on the Parent Company to provide suppornt (o service its operational
expenditure and repay its liabilities.

The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial statements may differ from that estimated as a the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company will
continue to closely monitor these sspects and take actions as are appropriate based on future economic conditions
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38 Certain amounts (currency value or percentages) shown in the various tables and paragmphs included in the financial statements have been rounded off or tnmcated as deemed
appropriste by the management of the Company.

39 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to the current year's classification.
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